
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 

 

 
 

 
i 

MEMBERS CYCLING AND PEDESTRIAN STEERING GROUP 
 

To:   Committee Members: Councillors Rosenstiel, Boyce, Abbott, Owers and 
Tucker 
 

Despatched: Friday 28th June 2013 

  

Date: Wednesday, 3 July 2013 

Time: 4.30 pm 

Venue: Committee Room 2 - Guildhall 

Contact:  Clare Rankin Direct Dial:  01223 457000 
 

AGENDA 

1   MINUTES OF LAST MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING  (Pages 5 - 10) 

2   PAGE TO PERFORMANCE  - WHY WE RIDE FILM   

3    PROMOTION GRANT FUNDING:   
 

 i) Accordia Bridge, presented by Chair of Group, Dr Nigel Harris. 

ii) Cycle Expo 

4   COUNTY TEAM LEADER CYCLING PROJECTS - UPDATE.   

5   CITY CYCLING SCHEMES/ POLICIES UPDATE  (Pages 11 - 18) 

6    PLANNING APPLICATIONS    
 

 • NW University Site, Primary Road 

• NIAB (Darwin Green 1) 

• University Technical College 

  

7   ANY OTHER BUSINESS   

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

 
 

Information for the Public 
 

QR Codes 
(for use with Smart 

Phones) 
Location 

 
 
 

 

The meeting is in the Guildhall on the 
Market Square (CB2 3QJ).  
 
Between 9 a.m. and 5 p.m. the building is 
accessible via Peas Hill, Guildhall Street 
and the Market Square entrances. 
 
After 5 p.m. access is via the Peas Hill 
entrance. 
 
All the meeting rooms (Committee Room 1, 
Committee 2 and the Council Chamber) 
are on the first floor, and are accessible via 
lifts or stairs.  
 

 

 

 

Fire Alarm In the event of the fire alarm sounding 
please follow the instructions of Cambridge 
City Council staff.  
 

 

Facilities for 
disabled 
people 

Access for people with mobility difficulties 
is via the Peas Hill entrance. 
 
A loop system is available in Committee 
Room 1, Committee Room 2 and the 
Council Chamber.  
 
Adapted toilets are available on the ground 
and first floor. 
 
Meeting papers are available in large print 
and other formats on request. 
 
For further assistance please contact 
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 

 



 
iii 

Queries on 
reports 

If you have a question or query regarding a 
committee report please contact the officer 
listed at the end of relevant report or 
Democratic Services on 01223 457013 or 
democratic.services@cambridge.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

General 
Information 

Information regarding committees, 
councilors and the democratic process is 
available at 
http://democracy.cambridge.gov.uk/  
 
 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



���������	
��
���
�����������
�������
�������� �	
��
� �����	��������
����� �

�

�
�
�

��

�����������	
���
����������

�������
�����������������
����� �
� �
�
�������!�����

�������"����#�����$��
��%���
������
�

����������������&�
'���������(�	
��������)������
�������*+���,�
�

����������
������%�
'�
�-��	
��
��.�"��'�
��*//�
���#���	����

��$�
&�
��)�
��	�-�0�����/���������.�*��
����
���#���	����

��$�
��'��1�2����-��	
�������������������������
�����#���
�	����

��$�
3������������-������������	
��
���������
,�
�
�

 ����!��
� ���
�
���� ��!�������
	�

�

""� ���#�����$��%���&�������%���&%������%�������
�

•� &����� �/� %�/���

�,� �%� ���� ��2��+��� �
�� ���
���� ���� &����� �/�
%�/���

��/����+�
���
�������/���������&�
'��,�)�4���
'�
��
���5�2�����
��/�
����&������������
�
��
����������
������������
�������,����
�����

�����
��������2����/���/���

���������&��//�
���
�����
��)����3��
�����������,�
&���
�+�&������/�%�/���

��+����
������������/����6
2���
��
���
����
	�
���������,��

�

��
����������$#��'���%&�����'��������������#�����&���$���$����(�����
��%����'%���'���%&)�������*(����%&�%����(%����&��%���%��%�������+��
�

",� ���&��������%���$#�������
�

•� (������� ������ �	
��� ���'�
�� -� �����
�����
� �	� )
���
	� (�+� �
�������
�
(�����/�(�������������#&�����
���
$�%�����
��5����7��,�

�
(������� ������ 
����� �����2��� 
	
��� �������� /�
�������� ���� ��� �

�����
��
����
�,� &��� �����
����
� ��� /��� �� ��� 
���
��	� 
	
��� ����� ��
����� 
����� ���
������
��� ����� +����� ��� ����� +���� ���� �
�� ��
����� ��/��
��
�� ���� 
����� �/�
������
��,�&����8����
���9����
���+�������������
��,�&�����
�����������������
���:�����+���������
���������
��
�����'�
��	�����������
����������2��,�

�

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 1

Page 5



���������	
��
���
�����������
�������
�������� �	
��� �����	��������
����� 

�

�
�
�

��

&��� ������
�� ������ �������� +������� ������ +���� �
	� ������� �/� ����
	� ���
���

����� ����� +����� ��
	� /�
��
�� ��� ���2���� ������
��5� �
�����,� &���
;������
� �/� �����
� ��
�/��� 
����� ��� ����2�
�� ����,� )��� ������� ������ +�����
��'��	��������������
����
���/� �����
������ 
���
�� /��+������� ��������2��� �/�
����&����������

���
������������
����9��������
���+���
�����/�
	
��
�,��

�

��
�����'��������������#��������-��$$�(���%�.�(�����/'��'��� $#������
(%��)�����.�����������.%������������0����#��+��
�

<(!� 7����� ��2���� +��� ����� ����� '�
�� �/� ���� ���� 
��� ��//�
��
��	� ��
�/��� ����
��
����� �����
��
����� ����������+���
����+������ �������
��� ��+�2��� ����
���
�	����

���������'��	����
�
�������������/�
��
�,�

�

•� 4%�+��'�5�(�'�+����������
��	�=
������������
	�>������
�����
��	�)����
�
"��������,��

�
&��� ����
������
� ��� 
����
��	� +������� ��������� ���� ��� �
;�������
� �	�
��2�������,� *

�� ��������� ���� ���
� �������� ���� /�
��
�� +����� ���2����
������ /���	� �;������� 
	
��� +��'� ��	��� �

�������� ��� ���� �����
� /���
���
��
�

���
�� ����
�
��
����,�&���:9?������
���������� /���+����� �����
/�
��
�+��;�����
���
�����//�
��/�������	�����+��'�/�����	���,��

�
&���������
��������
�

������ ����������2��� /��� /�
��
��
������
�	�����
�
�����������������������
������
�/�
���
�+���������,���
��
��������'���/���
�����/�
�

����	����
��������
��������2����
�������
�8�,��

�

•� 4�����������/����

�5��
&��������
����
����/���: ��������/�
�������	�+��'�����,�

� �
&��� ������
�� ������ ��;����� /������� �
/�������
� �
� ���� ������ 2����� �/� ����
���@�
���

����
��������'��+
��/�
��������������+���
����

���������������/�
���������
����
,��

�
<(!�������
/�������
�������

�����
����2������
���������
��+����+�����,�

�
&��� ������
�� ������ ���
������ ���� ������ �����
����
�� �
�� 
�

������ �����
������+����� ��� /�
����2�������� ��� �������� �+������ �/� ���� ���������������,�
��'��1�2����
�
/����������������/�
��
����+������������+���
������
�����
����������/�����������
�	����

��,��

•� ����
����� /�
��
�� �
����� #�%$,� &��� ��2�
� ��
���� ����
������ �
�� �
��
������� ����
�����������2�������� ��� ���������
� ��� �������
��)�
����
����
�����
�
�������
�����/�:A �,��

Page 6



���������	
��
���
�����������
�������
�������� �	
� � �����	��������
����� 

�

�
�
�

 �

�
��
��
�� �����2���� ��������� ���� ������
�� ������ +����� ��
����
�� �����
�//�
���� ������
�� ���� ���
�� )�
���� �������
�� ���� ����������	� �/� /�
�

����
�������,��

�

•� %��
�� ����� ����� ���/���� /�
��
�� #�%$,� &��� 
���� �/� �����
��
�� ���� ���/�����
+���������
�����:���,��

�
��
��
�������2��,�)�������������������
��	�������
��
������%��
�������
	
���
�������������������
�/�
�
����//���

��������//�
�
�
������
��
�������	,��

�

"1� �'��'��&���%���
�

•� &��� ���
�	� ���

��� ��2�� ����
� +��'� �
�� �����
��� ����� %�+��
��
� ���
���@�
����
����,�&���������
����������2�������
������'��
������'�����
���
/��+�����
����8���������������5������
�����/����+�
���������A�)�'�
��������,�
1��
�����
�� +���� ��� 
������ +���� <��+��'� %���� �
� ������ ��� /��������� ����
�
������
�����	�+���������
���������+
����@�
����
����,�&����������
������
2��	�
�����
��������@�
��+������
�������/����'�,��

•� &��� �+�� ��
���
�� �/� ���� ���@�
�� 
����
��	� ���
�� ����������� ���� ���� 
�+�
������� �2��� ���� ���� �
�� ���� ��
���
� ���+��
� ���������� ������
� �
��
0����������������������
����
��������	����

��5�������%����1����,�&���������
��	� ��� 
���
�� /��+���� /��� ��2������
�� �
�� �//�
���� ��2�� ���
� �����
�+�����/�����
������������2���������
��/����������������&�����������������
��2������
����������,�&���������������������������
��
������&������
������
&��2������'�
��������
��������������������/������%���������������������
���
��
/��+����/�����2������
�,��

�

"2� ��#��*���%&�	�%�����*(��������3�(���4�#��%��+�
�

•� (�'������
��	��������-�6������
����@�
�,�&�����

�������������������/�����
��	�
���������� /��� �������
�� 
	
��� ��2���
��,� &���� +����� ��� ��������� �
� ��
�����
�
�� ��
����
� ��
�� �����
2��������
�,���������5�� ��2�� �
��
����� �����
���	�+����� ��� �
��������� �
� 
�
�������
�� ��� ���� 
���� �/� ���� ���������,��%�

�
/�����������������������+�������	����

���*��
����
��*//�
�����
������
�
�� ����� �
� ����� �
� ���� ����+�	�� 
���� ��� ���� ���� ������ ���� ���
�
���
��/���,� &���� +����� 
���� ��� ��� ���� ������ �
�� "������
����� )����
�����������/����
/�������
����������+�����
�����;��������

�
�����������
�
��� ��� +����� ��� ���������� ��2������
�,� )

����
�� ��� ����� "����� ����� �
�
���//�
���2���
������������	����
������������
�����
������/�����
��	���������

Page 7



���������	
��
���
�����������
�������
�������� �	
�9� �����	��������
����� 

�

�
�
�

9�

�/��������������@�
�,��	
��
�������
���������8���
����/��������������������
���������/���������������
������������������
���,�

•� �������
�����
�� @�

���
� #0	������'����
��$� �����2���
��,� ��
��
�� ����
���
������2���/���
�+�
	
��
���
�����������
��
��

���
��,�)����2��� ���
������ 
������ /��� ���� ��������� ����
� ������ 
	
��� ���
� ��+�2��� ��� �������

�
��
������� ���+������� ��
�� �
���2�
���
��+�������'���
	���//���

�� ���
��/��	,� =������ �������� �������
�� ���
���� �
�� �����
� �
������
�� �
�
�����2���
����
������������

����
������1,�

•� ��������%���,�&�������2����/������//�
���
���������+�/��������8��
���
��/�����

	
�����
���������2�����

���/��,�*//�
��������
�+����'�
���
�������	�
�������
�
������
�%���,�&���
����
��	��
�����������������
��
���"��+�
'�%����
�����
������
����
�����
	
�����
�,�

•� 1�&��	
���)������
����
�,�&������
�	����

��������
���������
���/�)��������
�������������/���������/�����:��������
���������������������2���������2�������

�8�� �+�� 	����,� &�� ��� ��

���/���� ���� ���� +����� ��2�� ��� ����
������� ��
���@�
�5��������	� ��������
�� 4���
�/�������
���
��
��,5�����������+������� �
�

���������
� +���� ������ 
������ ��
�� ��� (������
,� )����� +����
� ������
���������������
��������
�
�����������������/� �������	�1���,�&������
�	�
+��������/����������������'����
'��+�������������
�0�������������	����������������

�����
�����������
�	����

��5�������,��

�

"5� ���*��*(������('�&���#��%���
�

•� 1�+
���5��7�
�,�&����
�+�����4������
�����	+�	5�������,�)����@�
��*//�
���
��� 
����
��	� +��'�
�� �
� ������
�� ����������+���� 
����

���
�� �/� +��'� �
�
���������
�������	�������,��

•� (���'��
�5��)2�
��,�%�
�
����
���
�+��'�����������������
�)����,�

•� ����
� 1����
� �0� ������� �
�� 3����� ����
,� )� ���@�
�� *//�
��� ���� ���
�
�����
����������3���������
�+��'��
��+����+��'�
�����	�+����&����*//�
���,�
*//�
�����8���
�
�� �������������
�
	
�����
�
/��
����� ��������
�1����
�����
���� ���'�
�� ��� �����
�� ���+���
� ���� ����,�*//�
����+���� ���+� ��� ����������
�
���
�����+������
���������
��5�������,��

•� %�����
�����
�� %���,� )� ���@�
�� *//�
��� ��� +��'�
�� �
� �� �����
� �
�
�
��
������
��/�/�
��
��/��������1�&,��

�
<(!� � &��� 1/&� ���� ��

�� �

��

��� ����� ����� �
����� ���� ���
� �+������

/�
��
�,�

�

Page 8



���������	
��
���
�����������
�������
�������� �	
��� �����	��������
����� 

�

�
�
�

��

"6� 
�*���'����#�������
�

•� &��� ���
�	� &��
������ �������	� /��� ���� ���	� �
�� ������ �����,� �%� ���
+��'�
�� �
� 
�����������
� +���� ���
�	� �//�
���� �
� �� ���� ����������
�� '�	�
��������
��@�

���
���
�
�����/������2���
����
,�����/���������
�����
,�&����
+����������
����������������������������,��

•� "��������������1����
������,�&���������
������������
��/�������	��������
�
�������������,�%������+������������
���������������
'����2�
��
	
��� ��
���
�������	,�*
�	�������	���������
�����������+�	��������
���������,�&����+���
���
����������	���������	
��
���
�����������
�7�����
������,�)�/���+�	�+����
������������������
��/����
	
���������
������
�
/��
�,��

•� ��
� %���� ������
�� �����,� &��� 3��
�� �	
��+�	�� (������ ���� ���
�
�����2��,�

•� &�������0����@�
��������
����/����<�����)��������������
�8��+��',��

•� ���	�(�'�����'�
�����@�
�,�)����2����������
���2�
����������+��',�)����@�
��
(�����������
��������,�

•� &��2���&��"��',�&������
�	����

���������������������
�
�����������,�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�!

��
�

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Page 1 of 4 

Cycling and Walking Promotion Grants:  

APPLICATION FORM 2012-2013 

 

 

ABOUT YOUR GROUP/ORGANISATION 

 

Q1 What is the name of the group / organisation? 

          The Accordia Bridge Group 

 

Q2 For this application, who is the contact? 

            Dr Nigel Harris 

 

Q3 What is their position in the group / organisation? 

            Chair 

 

Q4 What is their daytime telephone number, address and e-mail address? 

53 Aberdeen Avenue, Cambridge CB2 8DL   

 violin.harris@gmail.com   

01223 315247                                                                        

Q5  If  you are a voluntary group/Charity please answer the following questions: 

 

5a) What are the names of the Chair, Secretary and Treasurer of the group? 

           Chair: Dr Nigel Harris  

           Secretary: Stuart Weir  

           Treasurer: Ian Cray  

 

5b) What are the main aims of the group? 

To secure the construction of a foot-bridge over Hobson’s Conduit to bring about beneficial 

community connectivity, linking the Accordia development and the eastern half of south Cambridge 

with 

access to the railway station and buses with Empty Common and the western half of Cambridge 

with additional access to north and south Cambridge; 

b. To encourage and organise as necessary improvement of the environment and biodiversity of the 

east bank of the Conduit and its water flow. 

 

Agenda Item 5

Page 11



Page 2 of 4 

 

 

 

 

 

THE PROJECT 

 

Q7 What is the name of the project you want us to fund? 

Bridge over Hobson’s Brook connecting pedestrian networks on each side. Outline Planning Approval 
Nov 2012. 12/1078/OUT 
 

 

Q8 Please give a description of the project  - include information such as  how the project 

will meet one or more of the aims of the grant, how will it work, who is the project aimed 

at and where will it be based. 

         This would link the pedestrian network within the Accordia site to the existing paths that run 

alongside the west side of the conduit and around the west side of the allotments. The width of 

the bridge would provide good manoeuvrability and easy access to wheelchair users and 

parents with push-chairs. The path link to the bridge on the Accordia side would be in permeable 

rolled hoggin with edging to match the existing paths in Accordia. All construction to be above 

the root protection zone of the trees and to avoid any impact on the puddled lining of the 

watercourse. The east end of the bridge will be level with the existing path and on the west side 

to fall modestly to the level of the existing footpath. 

 

Q9 Where will the project be based? 

Adjacent to CB2 8DA.  Off-site partial pre- fabrication of bridge superstructure will minimise 

construction time on site. 

 

 

Q10 Who will manage the project? 

The works specification will be subject to advice received from the local authority in relation to 

construction being of adoptable standard. Following a pre-qualification exercise of potential 

contractors, we will undertake a competitive tendering process for a design and build contract. The 

on-site work will be supervised by a structural engineer and architect (trustees). Local authority 

Building Control, Planning and Public Realm officers will inspect   

 

 

Page 12



Page 3 of 4 

Q11 How many people will benefit and how will you measure this? 

A footbridge will make a significant contribution to permeability. It will increase ease of movement at a 
local level, opening up access for Accordia residents to the green spaces of Empty Common, its 
amenities, the allotments and in time to a community orchard; and for residents of neighbouring 
communities to the Accordia shop, play area and garden space; and at a city-wide level, facilitating 
connectivity for residents of south Cambridge to the railway station, bus routes, Addenbrooke’s and the 
city centre. We estimate that pedestrian movements in the area will increase between 25-30% from the 
existing light levels of less the 100 movements/day. 
 

 

 

Q12 Are you working with any partners? If so please give details. 

Veolia Environmental Trust Project Ref: 2921/D 

 

 

 

 

FUNDING 

 

Q13 What are the project’s start and finish dates? 

Start: Autumn 2013  

Finish: Dec 2013  

 

Q14 If the project is ongoing, how will it be funded once the Cycling and Walking Promotion 

funding ends? 

          We anticipate that post completion the bridge will not require significant resources with the 
exception of quinquennial maintenance. We anticipate that the bridge will be adopted by the 
City Council post completion. 

 

 

 

Q15 What are the full costs of the project? 

 

Please attach a detailed breakdown of the costs, together with quotes, where appropriate. 

Item/activity (Quantity/ Units)  Total cost (£) 

Planning  760 

Building control  640 

Licence  3000 

Insurance  950 

Design and build  13200 

Contingency  1300 

 

          Total Project Costs-                                                                   19850 

Page 13



Page 4 of 4 

 

 

 

Q16 How much funding are you seeking from the Cycling and Walking Promotion Grant? 

15% of total project costs - £2875. 

 

Q17 What, if any, are your other sources of funding for this project? 

Veolia Environment Trust 

 

 

 

MONITORING 

 

Q18 How will you monitor the project? 

The trustees come from a variety of professional and managerial background. The trustees all have 
experience in a variety, of community, charitable and local authority engagement. We have extensive 
experience in the fields of finance, public relations, construction management with specific expertise in 
planning, structural engineering and architecture. One of our trustees is professionally involved in 
evaluating and managing grant aid applications and projects for The Heritage Lottery Fund and English 
‘Arm’s length body’. 
 
 

 

 

Q19 How will you assess the outcome(s) or success of the project? 

Success will be measured by monitoring how much use is made of the bridge. The completion of the 
bridge will approximately coincide with the release of the 65 new allotments on Empty Common.  It is 
known to us that a number of Accordia residents have applied for an allotment and it is expected that 
more will apply when access via the bridge is made possible. We would expect to see Accordia 
residents broadening their present active interest in the green spaces on the east bank to include 
similar conservation management on the west bank of the Brook. It is not beyond the trustees to count 
the number of people using the brookside walk on a typical fine Saturday in May this year, and then 
conduct a count again under similar conditions when the bridge is built.  
 

 

Once completed, please e-mail this form to: clare.rankin@cambridge.gov.uk 

 

 

 Any personal data provided on this form will be processed in compliance with the Data 

Protection Act 1998.  We will only share personal information with other public sector 

organizations if it is necessary for the prevention and detection of fraud. Further information 

relating to your rights under the Data Protection Act can be sent to you on request. 

Page 14



 1 

Pedestrian bridge over Hobson's Conduit: Summary of Community 

Consultation 

 

The project for a pedestrian bridge over Hobson’s Conduit has been extensively debated over a number 

of years on the Accordia development and for the past three years more widely with stakeholders and 

other bodies.  The proposal was debated over a series of residents’ meeting on Accordia with 

attendances of 50-70 people (September 2009; October 2010; January 2011).  At each of these meetings 

the case for going ahead with the proposal was endorsed without votes being taken.  Our group was 

asked at the meeting on October 2010 to examine the case for and against constructing a bridge and to 

report back.  We found that the benefits outweighed possible drawbacks. At a full residents’ meeting in 

January 2011, our spokesperson summarised these benefits in a presentation and we circulated a leaflet 

in a letter-drop across the Accordia development in advance.  We also undertook a programme of 

consultation with stakeholders, statutory authorities and the Bentley Rd / Newton Rd residents’ 

association (BENERA), none of whom opposed the proposal while expressing concerns (mainly for 

impact on bio-diversity and the potential for increased cycle traffic). 

 

The application for planning approval contained a fuller summary of the evidence and we discussed it 

at a meeting of the newly established community association (ACRA) on 6 October 2012. A majority 

of those present were favourable, while 4 people spoke against the proposal.  We discussed the 

evidence with external interested stakeholders and have presented it in the local newspaper, the 

council’s local newsletter and at the south area committee of the City Council in November 2012. 

 

The consultations that were undertaken before the planning application are fully written up in the 

Design and Access statement on pages 12 to 17 inclusive.  This did include consultation on 4 

alternative locations for the bridge, which preceded the selection of the one location that was the 

subject of the planning application. The selected location best met all the criteria, including 

minimising adverse reaction from nearby residents. 

 

In accordance with normal consultation procedures, the planners gave written notice of the 

planning application to nearby residents, mainly in Kingfisher Way. Following this, ACRA 

officers asked for wider consultation, including written notice to all 376 housing units on the 

Accordia site.  

 

We believe that the consultation process has been very wide and the responses have been carefully 

considered. The conditions added to the outline planning permission that was granted further serve 

to meet any objection that may remain, including the provision of a kissing gate to deter cycle 

traffic.  The bridge complies fully with Public Policy; indeed, had the development come up for 

planning permission today the planners would ask for a bridge to be included to meet requirements 

of connectivity. 

 

"As Highway Authority responsible for Public Rights of Way in 

Cambridgeshire, Cambridgeshire County Council welcomes the improved 

pedestrian connectivity which would be provided by the proposed bridge 

over Hobson's Brook. This would help meet the objectives of the 

Cambridgeshire Rights of Way Improvement Plan 

(http://www.cambridgeshire.gov.uk/environment/countrysideandrights/polic 
ies/policies/rowip.htm), the statutory and adopted Policy of the County 

Council for access to the countryside, open space and green space. The 

project objectives should also support the objectives of the wider 

Page 15



 2 

Cambridgeshire Green Infrastructure Strategy. 

(http://www.cambridgeshirehorizons.co.uk/our_challenge/green_spaces/)" 

 

 

The County Council’s walkways manager advised us at the outset to expect opposition to the proposal 

as this was absolutely normal for all alterations to walkways.  The meeting called by the City Council 

officers to receive comments on which of 4 proposed sites to select, attracted about 30 residents 

motivated to ensure no bridge was built near them.  The final selection of the site most remote from 

the apartments satisfied most of the objectors.  An unreasonably inflammatory notice was sent by the 

secretary of BENERA to their members asking them to respond to the planning application.  However, 

our ongoing relationship with BENERA reveals that the bridge is not a divisive issue and indeed a 

number of residents can see that their daily walk to the station could be over the bridge and through 

Accordia rather than alongside the heavy traffic on Brooklands Avenue. Our attendance at the latest 

AGM for BENERA (June 11th) confirmed that their committee has no objection to a pedestrian bridge 

and it does not represent a threat to the green corridor. 

 

Since the approval of the outline planning application there has been continued support in the 

Accordia community.  It is recognised by many that the very well supported and appreciated 

community involvement in managing and enhancing the green spaces in Accordia is organised by 

some of the same people that are promoting the building of the bridge. 

 

However, the merits or otherwise of building the bridge should not be measured by a popularity poll.  

The important balances and advantages to the community at large were assessed through the rigour of 

the planning process and were found to be in the community interest and so the project was approved. 

 

 

SOUTH AREA COMMITTEE 19 November 2012 

Application Number 12/1078/OUT 

 

SUMMARY The development accords with the Development Plan for the following reasons: 

The proposed footbridge would not cause harm to the setting of the 

Green Belt and is in accordance with guidance as set out in the National 

Planning Policy Framework (2012) and policy 4/1 of the Cambridge Local Plan; 

 

A limited amount of cycle usage will be inevitable along the existing 

footpath, but I consider that this does not outweigh the benefit that the link 

will provide for pedestrians in accordance with policy 8/4 of the 

Cambridge Local Plan 2006; and I find that on balance the benefits of 

the bridge outweigh the concerns raised by residents and that in my 

opinion the proposal adequately respects the residential amenity of its 

neighbours and the constraints of the site and I consider that it is compliant 

with and Cambridge Local Plan (2006) 

policies 3/4 and 3/7. 

 

RECOMMENDATION 

APPROVAL 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 3 

 

 

STATUTORY CONSULTATIONS 

 

Cambridgeshire County Council (Engineering) 

The width of the proposed footbridge would make 

its use suitable only for pedestrians and wheelchair users. 

Whilst there may be an aspiration to use the path by cyclists, its 

benefits to the wider cycling public would seem relatively small, 

and so whilst a small increase in cycle movements would be 

likely, the geometry of the link would deter through cycling for 

any but leisurely cyclists. It should be considered, however that aspirations for 

improvement of the link, once established, may be engendered. 

In terms of pedestrian connectivity, however, the route would 

seem to have significant advantages for residents of the site. 

 

Nature Conservation Projects Officer 

The proposed location for the pedestrian bridge 

confers minimal ecological impact with the loss of only a short section of 

overgrown bramble and species poor grassland. However, 

consideration of the impacts of construction on adjacent vegetation 

and trees is required. Any requests for lighting should be resisted as the 

Hobsons Conduit provides a route for foraging bat species. To 

this end a suitable condition preventing future lighting of the 

bridge might be appropriate. 

 

Environment Agency 

No objection. 

 

Hobson’s Conduit Trust 

The Trust have rights of access to the banks of 

Hobson’s Brook and the design of the bridge should not ensure that 

access is not obstructed. Neither should the structural integrity of the 

brook, its banks and bed, be compromised in any way. The design of the bridge has 

potential 

for cycle access and we are concerned that the bridge will increase cycle usage 

along the banks of the Brook, which is opposed too. 

Opposition to any loss of the sense of semi-rural tranquillity on 

the western edge of the Brook and that a new pedestrian 

access could endanger that sense, particularly if cycle traffic increases. 

The Trust are not opposed to the principle of a bridge, but have 

major reservations on the likely impacts that the introduction of 

a bridge shall bring. 

 

Sustainable Drainage Officer 

No overall objection, although further details will be required at 

the detailed design stages. 

 

 

 

Page 17



 4 

 

 

Arboricultural Officer 

 

Second response 23 October 2012 

Following receipt of the tree survey I am satisfied 

that, provided appropriate tree protection methods are adopted and 

adhered to, the Accordia bridge can be constructed without 

material damage to adjacent trees. 

There is therefore no arboricultural objection subject to the 

imposition of an appropriate condition. 

 

Architectural Liaison Officer (Cambridgeshire 

Constabulary) 

To my mind, I would certainly think about what 

opening the footpath up would mean in terms of permeability. Firstly, I am 

not aware of any problems associated with the Hobson's Brook 

footpath or Accordia itself. I would also view closely what is 

beyond the Accordia site e.g. Newton Road/Bentley Road etc 

and how residents would feel about this link being opened up. 

From a policing perspective, crime and disorder is low across 

both areas. Whilst I don't feel able to support the 

application, there are no grounds from a crime reduction or community 

safety perspective to object to the proposal. I would again state 

that from my view Option 3 provides the best option 

in terms of surveillance. 

 

 

 

Prepared by Accordia Bridge Group – June 2013 

 
 

 

Page 18


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of last meeting and matters arising
	5 City Cycling Schemes/ Policies update
	Pedestrian Footbridge over Hobson


